NATIONS CERD

H H Distr.
Interngtl_ona_l Convention on CENERAL
the Elimination CERD O SR 1161
of all Forms of 1 Novenber 1996
Racial Discrimination ENGLI SH

Oiginal: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Forty-ninth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1161st MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 7 August 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON
CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES

UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Tenth to fourteenth periodic reports of India

Tenth to twelfth periodic reports of Malta

This record is subject to correction

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 96- 17753 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p. m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Tenth to fourteenth periodic reports of India (CERD C/ 299/ Add. 3)

1. At the invitation of the Chairnman, the nenbers of the |Indian del egation
took places at the Committee table.

2. Ms. GHOSE (I ndia) apol ogi zed for the fact that her country’s report
(CERD/ C/ 299/ Add. 3) had been subnmitted 10 years late. As indicated in
paragraph 2, that had basically been due to India s federal systemand the
fact that the concept of “race” was not an obvious one for Indians. In
addition, the existing structures were no |onger equal to the task of
produci ng reports and her country was consi dering establishing a specific body
to do so.

3. The report was brief, since India had chosen to reply to the questions
whi ch the nmenbers would raise after having read it rather than submit a
lengthy report at the outset. That nethod had been chosen deliberately and
could be dropped for the next report if the Committee w shed.

4, India was a multiracial and multicultural society. |Its population was
much nore aware of distinction of caste, religion and sex than raci al

di fferences. For that reason, race as a ground for discrimnation had never
been i nvoked before the Indian courts of law (report, para. 10). “Caste”
denoted a social and class distinction (para. 6). The “Schedul ed” Castes and
Tribes referred to in sonme annexes of the Indian Constitution were anong the
economi cal Iy underprivil eged groups and the Constitution provided for positive
di scrimnation neasures to inprove their economic situation and help them
enter the mainstreamof national life (para. 6). Those measures had been
known to elicit hostility from other population groups, but India remined
convinced that they were necessary and justified. Efforts had al so focused on
education, which was one of the nmeans of elimninating prejudice.

5. A recently established National Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion (para. 12) had
done sone excellent work in that area. The different States had been
encouraged to establish such conmi ssions and human rights courts and to focus
attention on human rights education (in the nilitary academni es and police
schools in particular).

6. The Government could not do everything by itself. The non-government al
organi zati ons, which had devel oped inpressively in recent years, were a

val uabl e source of information and the cooperation that had begun between them
and the authorities had proved to be valuable. India hoped to attain its
objectives and it was certain that the Conmittee s suggestions and questions
would help it to do so.

7. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the Indian del egati on and assured it that the
Conmittee was aware that the preparation of nunerous reports for treaty bodies
was a burden for States parties. In view of that difficulty and the




CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 3

restrictions on the secretariat, when considering reports, the Conmittee
shoul d i ndicate very precisely what information it wi shed the State party to
provide in its next reports.

8. He took note with interest of the perplexity which the concept of “race”
caused in India, whereas the drafters of the Convention had thought “race” was
a transcul tural concept for which equivalents existed in all |anguages.

Despite that perplexity, the Convention was a val uabl e resource whi ch shoul d
be used as advant ageously as possi ble. The approach taken by the
representative of India to the question of race was therefore hel pful to the
Commi tt ee.

9. M. RECHETOV (Country Rapporteur) said that the introduction of the
representative of India reflected a critical and healthy approach to the
situation in the country. The difficulties raised by the complexity of the
concepts at issue, such as race and caste, should have no influence on either
the reports’ regularity or quality. The Conmittee had prepared guidelines for
the preparation of reports, and it was entitled to expect States parties to
conply with them

10. Legi sl ati on al one could not solve all the problens, but since the caste
systemin India had repercussions on the lives of the public at |arge, changes
in the existing structure needed to be speeded up. He wel coned the

establi shment of the National Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion, which was performing a
useful task. He would like additional information on the process of
denocrati zati on, which was apparently bei ng acconpani ed by acts of separatism
and even terrorismin India. To be sure, India was the | argest denocracy in
the worl d, but denocracy and respect for human rights did not always go

t oget her.

11. Regrettably the report |acked denographic and social information such as
that contained in the table in annex | of the preceding report
(CERD/ C/ 149/ Add. 11). Even if racial discrimnation had never been invoked
before the courts (para. 10), it was still true that part of the popul ation
was considered to be different, and that was inportant fromthe standpoint of
the Convention. The Committee would |ike nore details on the castes.
According to its information, the menbers of certain |ower castes mght be
deni ed access to springs when it would be necessary to share water with other
conmunities - and water was a major problemin India - or access to
restaurants or other public places. Children in rural schools were divided
according to caste. The nenbers of the | ower castes were oppressed and rmade
up the majority of the population in a state of servitude.

12. The Conmittee would al so appreciate informati on on the known religious
and linguistic mnorities. India was a large country in which many | anguages
and religions coexisted, usually successfully, despite the difficulties. The
Conmittee could not subscribe to the allegation, which had often been heard,
but di sproved by history, that conflicts between H ndui smand |slam were
inevitable. Over the centuries, the Mislinms had nade a val uabl e contri bution
to the construction of the country and it should be possible to elimnate

di ssension. Wth regard to Jammu and Kashmir, the infornmation avail abl e spoke
of persecution that had all egedly caused sonme Indian mnority groups to flee
to other regions. The Conmittee woul d wel come further information in that
connection. It was true that the concept of “race” was vaguely delineated.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 4

The Conmittee was interested in knowi ng how the nechani sns that guaranteed the
protection of the human rights of everyone, wi thout distinction, functioned in
a given country. People whose rights had been violated should be able to
defend thensel ves in the courts. On that point, the Conmittee woul d wel come
details on the claimfor nonetary conpensation for a human rights violation
(para. 32). Acts by the arnmed forces were al so considered to be very

i mportant fromthe standpoint of the Convention. According to his

i nformation, there had been a 1992 decision adding a paragraph to article 197
of the Code of Civil Procedure, to the effect that representatives of the
arnmed forces were not held responsible for their acts. The Conmmittee woul d
appreciate information on that decision and, if possible, would like to hear
that that provision would be changed.

13. Regardi ng the unrest in Jammu and Kashnir, he categorically reaffirmed
that the Committee did not have the |least intention of encouraging separatism
Similarly, the attenpt to present the conflict taking place in the province as
an exclusively religious one did not reflect the true situation. The troubles
afflicting India were largely the result of human rights issues. The

wi despread viol ence in Janmu and Kashmir could be attributed to the fact that
t he regul ati on procedures were not respected when el ections were held, and

t hat encouraged fundanentali smand separatism It was therefore of the utnost
i mportance to restore denbcratic institutions in the province and guarant ee
the transparency of electoral processes through the presence of internationa
observers. It was also extrenmely inportant to ensure that the educationa
system functi oned snoothly, for, in situations |like the one in Janmu and
Kashmir, education could make a vital contribution

14. Econoni ¢ and social conditions were also not unrelated to India’s
problems. The figures spoke for thenselves: 55 per cent of the Mislim
popul ati on had an income under subsistence |level and 40 per cent of that group
was illiterate. |In such a context, bodies |ike the National Conm ssion on
Mnorities had an extrenely inportant role to play.

15. As the Indian delegation had said in its oral introduction, the

aut horities placed high hopes in the work of the National Human Ri ghts

Conmi ssion. That organi zation helped to draw the authorities’ attention to
abuses conmitted by | aw enforcenent bodies. On its initiative, noreover, the
Supremnme Court had adopted a nunber of decisions on conpensation for the
victinms of human rights violations. The Commi ssion was al so busy drawi ng up
conplete lists of people reporting violations of their human rights by menbers
of the security forces and the nilitary. That organization, which dealt with
the entire range of problens found in Indian society, unquestionably played a
val uabl e role

16. M. WO FRUM said that, considering that the State party had not
submtted a report for over eight years, it could have provided a nore
conplete picture of the situation in the country. More detailed informtion
woul d have inproved the dialogue with the Cormittee. 1t should be noted,
first, that the report stressed constitutional and | egislative nmeasures and
contained little informati on on other types of neasures that States parties
were bound to account for under article 9 of the Convention. The Indian

del egati on had, however, provided sone very useful information in its ora

i ntroduction.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 5

17. The articles of the Constitution nmentioned in paragraphs 10, 15 and 18
were fully in keeping with the principles of the Convention. Attention should
be drawn to article 15 (2), which extended the prohibition against
discrimnation to rel ationshi ps between individuals. That was a commendabl e
nmeasure which he would like to see cone into general use. It would, however,
be interesting to know how that provision was applied in daily life. Had
specific cases already arisen, and who had the burden of proof when cases were
brought before the courts?

18. Par agraph 20 of the report stated that under article 366 (2) of the
Constitution, an Anglo-Indian was defined “as a person whose father or any of
whose mal e progenitors in the male line is or was of European descent”.

Al t hough he subscribed to the argunent on which that statenent was based, he
wonder ed why an Angl o-1ndian could not have a fermal e ancestor, especially as
there were many cases of Englishwonen narrying Indian nen

19. In enacting criminal legislation to prohibit racial discrimnination, the
State party had conmplied fully with the provisions of the Convention, but no
informati on was given on the inplenentation of that legislation. It would be

interesting to know what kinds of cases the courts had dealt wi th and what
their decisions had been

20. The interpretation of the term“descent” (Convention, art. 1) in
paragraph 7 of the report was not acceptable. |If “descent” was the equival ent
of “race”, it would not have been necessary to include both concepts in the

Convention. The State party’s position on the question could not fail to be
of concern to the Conmittee.

21. He woul d also like to know whether the anti-terrorismlegislation was
applicable to the situation in the States of Janmu and Kashmir and Assam

22. It would be interesting to know how the nenbers of the castes were
treated by individuals, since the authorities’ attitude towards themwas not a
problem How did the authorities, especially the police, react when nmenbers
of a caste were prevented fromtaking water froma village well reserved for
anot her caste or were victins of discrimnation, for exanple in tea roons or
restaurants? According to some information, children belonging to certain
castes were separated fromthe other children in schools in the rural areas.
Did such practices actually take place and, if so, were they w despread or
limted to certain regions?

23. M. VALENCIA RODRIGJEZ, referring to the coments in paragraphs 6 and 7
of the report noted that, although the concept of “schedul ed castes and

tri bes” was not based on race, it did have an ethnic connotation and

di scrim nation agai nst nenbers of that group was therefore within the purview
of article 1 of the Convention. Castes and tribes were extremely inportant in
Indian society and it would be appreciated if the del egati on could provide
nore details on the question and, in particular, on the reasons for the

persi stence of that phenonenon, especially as India had | ong been a pillar of
international efforts to elimnate racial discrimnation. It had al so been
the first country, in 1946, to raise the problemof apartheid in the

United Nations Ceneral Assenbly.




CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 6

24, In connection with article 2 of the Convention, he drew attention to
article 15 of the Indian Constitution, which prohibited the State and

i ndi vi dual s from making any distinction between citizens. The practica
aspects of that provision were described in detail in the Indian Penal Code.
For a better understanding of the scope of that principle, the Committee woul d
like nore details on how it was applied, especially to relations between

i ndi vi dual s.

25. Article 366 of the Indian Constitution provided Anglo-Indians with
privileges for a period originally not to exceed 10 years. It would be
interesting to know whet her they had since been elinminated. There were al so
many minority ethnic groups in India living under extrenely difficult
conditions and therefore in need of protection. He would like clarifications
on their economc, social and cultural situation and the steps taken by the
State to inprove their living conditions.

26. The constitutional and | egislative provisions nentioned in paragraphs 24
and 25 of the report were, to be sure, positive, but they were insufficient to
neet the requirenents of article 4 of the Convention. Mich still needed to be

done in that area.

27. Wth regard to article 5 of the Convention, the infornmation provided by
the State party was useful, but not detailed enough. The Committee needed
much nore precise information in order to nake sure that there was in fact no
di scrimnation on grounds of ethnic origin, race or nationality.

28. In connection with article 6 of the Convention, the report stressed the
i ndependence of the judiciary and the role of the H gh Courts, especially the
Supremnme Court, in cases involving the violation of rights guaranteed by the
Convention, but gave no indication of the conposition and functions of the
people’'s courts. It would be interesting to know whet her there was any
over | appi ng between the people’s courts and the ordinary courts.

29. Wth regard to paragraph 2 of the report, he noted that article 6 of the
Convention firmy obliged States to take steps to assure just reparation to
victins of acts of discrimnation.

30. Concerning the inplenentation of the provisions of article 7, the
various steps taken by the Indian authorities to strengthen tol erance and
under st andi ng anong the different popul ation groups were commendabl e,
especially the changes in the school curricula and the activities organi zed by
the Indian Council on Cultural Relations. Nevertheless, in a vast and highly
popul ated country |ike India, which was a nosai c of cultures and | anguages,

br oader canpai gns had to be conducted to make the public at |arge aware of the
provi sions of the Convention, so that victinms of acts of discrimnation should
be fanmiliar with their rights and know whi ch donestic and internationa
remedi es were available to them

31. M. de GOUTTES said that the information provided orally by the Indian
del egation had fortunately supplenented a periodic report that was too brief
for a large and conplex country like India. In the general part of the
report, he would have liked to see updated denographic information, details on
the indicators of |lack of social integration of the npbst di sadvantaged groups
and details on di sappearances, executions and hostage-takings - reported by



CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 7

nunerous sources - occurring during clashes between the CGovernnent and arned
political groups, especially in Kashm r, Punjab, Assam and other States in the
northern part of the country. The section of the report containing an
article-by-article analysis was unfortunately too theoretical and focused too
much on the | egal aspect.

32. Referring to what might be called India s great paradox, he said that,
according to the report, on the one hand, |Indian society was not ethnically
honbgeneous and, on the other, race as an issue did not inpinge on the outl ook
of Indian citizens. |In explanation of that contradiction, the State party
noted in paragraph 6 of the report that “caste” denoted a social distinction
and was not based on race, and that woul d nmake the provisions of article 2 of
the Convention inapplicable. In his view, the problemwas conplex, but it was
unacceptable to say that the serious discrimnation against certain castes,
especi ally the untouchabl es, was not within the Conmmittee’ s conpetence.

33. The information on Indian criminal |egislation contained in

paragraphs 11 to 28 of the report did not help the Conmittee ascertain whether
that legislation was in confornmity with article 4 of the Convention. Any
clarifications which the Indian del egati on m ght provide woul d be wel comne.

34. Par agraph 10 of the report stated that “race” as a ground for

di scrimnation had never been invoked before the courts of law of India so
far. Such a statenment made hi m wonder whether citizens were informed of their
rights and the remedi es avail able and whether the |ack of court cases was not
due to the fact that the police and judicial authorities were not sufficiently
attentive to that type of offence

35. He woul d like to be given an assessnment of the work of the Nationa
Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion, the National Comm ssion for Schedul ed Castes and
Schedul ed Tribes and the National Conmi ssion on Mnorities nentioned in
paragraph 12 of the report.

36. It would al so be interesting to know whet her the Governnent intended to
make the declaration provided for in article 14 of the Convention. That would
be an extrenely significant gesture.

37. The CHAI RVAN proposed that consideration of the periodic report of India
shoul d be suspended until the next neeting.

38. The I ndian del egation withdrew.

Tenth to twelfth periodic reports of Malta (CERD ¢/ 262/ Add. 4)

39. At the invitation of the Chairnman, the nenbers of the Maltese del egation
took places at the Committee table.

40. M. QU NTANO (Malta), representing the Office of the Attorney-General of
Mal ta, said that, since the submission of the |last periodic reports, there had
been no instances of racial intolerance or discrinmnation in the country,
primarily because the population was both a limted one (approximtely

370, 000 people) and a honpbgeneous one with no traditional mnorities. That
honogeneity was strengthened by the nature of the Maltese | anguage itself,

whi ch was a mixture of Arabic and European el ements. Although recent




CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 8

i nformati on about the make-up of the Maltese popul ation by nationality was
unavai |l abl e, there was an increasing nunber of foreign students in Malta. The
children of refugees in Malta also had no difficulty in becom ng integrated.

41. Despite the absence of racial tensions in Malta, l[egal renedies were
avai |l abl e to anyone all eging discrimnation on grounds of race, colour or
origin. The Constitution prohibited discrimnation and could be invoked
before the courts. Access to the courts was easy and i nexpensive and | ega
services were provided for people who could not afford them |If the judgenent
was in favour of the applicant, the laws challenged had to be anmended in
accordance with new article 242 of the Code of Organization and G vi
Procedure and conpensation was awarded. All those provisions were in |line
with articles 6 and 4 (c) of the Convention. Substantial damages had been
awarded in cases of political discrimnation, but he did not know of a single
case of conpensation for discrimnation on the basis of race, origin or
nationality. The European Convention on Human Ri ghts had al so been
incorporated into Maltese |egislation and coul d be i nvoked before the courts
and applicants could seize the European bodies. Article 45 of the
Constitution, which prohibited discrinmination, was frequently invoked before
the courts, but usually in cases involving discrimnation on political or
religious grounds. The 1932 Seditious Propaganda (Prohibition) Odinance
(para. 6), which had been amended 10 tinmes, prohibited any incitenent to
raci al hatred and established severe penalties for infringenents of the |aw
Al t hough no specific legislation on racial discrimnation had been enacted,
the exercise of the rights listed in article 5 of the Conventi on was enforced
by the above-mentioned provisions. Mention should al so be made of Act XXI of
1995 establishing the Ofice of the Orbudsnan, nentioned in paragraph 9 of the
report. The QOrbudsman, who had extensive powers to ensure the protection of

i ndi vi dual s agai nst abuse of authority, had not received any conplaints since
hi s appoi nt ment .

42. It might be wondered why the Constitution contained such an extensive
article prohibiting discrimnation based on race, colour or origin when Malta
had no problenms in those areas. The answer lay in the history of the country:
when Malta, a forner British colony, had becone independent in 1964, it had
chosen to base its Constitution on the framework constitution being adopted by
nost of the forner colonies, in order to anticipate any problens in the area
of discrimnation.

43. Steps had been taken to provide human rights education to the nenbers of
the police and help themto understand the need to treat all individuals
equally. The courts were independent and inpartial and judges were appointed
virtually for life. They could only be renoved by a two-thirds majority of

t he House, which was practically inpossible to attain since there were

two dom nant forces in the political arena. No judge had been renoved to

dat e.

44, M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ (Country Rapporteur) said that, although Malta's
report was generally in keeping with the Committee’ s guidelines, it was
sonewhat |acking in detail. On substance, he wel coned the fact that there had
been no incidents of racial discrinination in Malta and that a conpl ex
intercultural harmony prevailed in the country. Even if there were no
significant ethnic mnorities and the Maltese Government did not feel the need
to adopt specific |egislation, however, it should be stressed that no society



CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 9

was i mmune to racial discrinination and that sonme prejudice, based on ancient
traditions, persisted. Cenerally speaking, it would be interesting to know
what progress had been made in the discussions on constitutional reform
nmentioned in paragraph 23 of the report.

45, Concerning the inplementation of the Convention article by article, he
rem nded the Maltese authorities that, in signing the Convention, they had
prom sed to enact special legislation to give effect to article 4 (a), (b)
and (c), taking account of the principles enbodied in the Universa

Decl aration of Human Rights and the rights provided for in article 5. The
Sedi ti ous Propaganda (Prohibition) Odinance (para. 6) was therefore not
sufficient, especially as paragraph 10 of the report stressed that racial

di scrimnation was wi dely unaccepted in Maltese society. The Committee

t heref ore hoped that the next report would contain information on specific

| egi sl ati on enact ed.

46. Wth regard to the inplenentation of article 5 of the Convention
paragraph 11 of the report stated that everyone in Malta was entitled to

i ndi vidual freedonms. |f that was the case, why did article 44 of the
Constitution explicitly guarantee the protection of freedom of novenent to
Mal tese citizens only? Had there been cases where the freedom of novenent of
ot her persons had been restricted? Mre information was al so needed on
existing remedies for violations of that article of the Convention
Concerning article 45 of the Constitution, which prohibited discrimnation on
the ground of race and related nore directly to the Convention, further

i nformati on was al so needed on any specific cases of discrimnation. As to
the renedi es and reparation provided for in article 6 of the Convention, the
report stated that individuals and groups had the possibility of recourse to
the courts, the Constitutional Court, the European Court of Human Ri ghts and
the Human Rights Committee. To file a remedy with the Committee, however, a
person first had to have turned to the European Court, in view of the
reservation the Government had nade when it had ratified the Optiona
Protocol. It would therefore be interesting to know how exactly Mlta
interpreted article 6 of the Convention and what | egal or other effects
derived fromits interpretation. M ght the Governnment consider withdraw ng
the reservation?

47. The report was al so sonewhat brief on the neasures taken in the areas of
education and training to conbat racial prejudices, as required by article 7
It did say that social |life was based on principles that fostered tol erance
and that canpai gns agai nst the negative effects of racial discrimnation had
been undertaken in the nedia (paras. 18 and 10), but the Committee would like
to know whet her the Convention had been sufficiently published and
distributed. On another matter, was the Maltese Governnent considering making
the declaration under article 14 of the Convention, to the effect that it
recogni zed the conpetence of the Cormittee to receive and consi der
conmuni cati ons from i ndividual s?

48. Wth regard to the denographi c conposition of the country, the
docunent ati on provi ded by the del egation indicated that the nunber of
naturalizations had increased. He would like to know which foreigners had
becone naturalized, what criteria governed the granting of naturalization and
whet her such criteria were applied w thout discrimnation. The Conmittee had
al so been provided with a copy of an issue of Malta’s Oficial Journa



CERD/ C/ SR. 1161
page 10

containing the list of foreigners holding a work pernmit in Novenber 1995.
That was anot her case where it would be interesting to know the criteria used
for issuing the permts.

49, M. GARVALOV said that the Maltese report raised a nunber of matters of
principle. Even if Malta had an excellent record in conbating racia
discrimnation, it could not claimto be conpletely imune to it. The
Convention did not say that it applied only to States parties in which racial
di scrimnation existed: the Convention nmade it conpul sory for all States
parties to take specific steps to give effect to the provisions of articles 2
4 and 6, in particular. Again, it should be stressed that article 4 was

bi ndi ng.

50. The report was therefore interesting, but somewhat brief. For exanple,
paragraph 5 said that it would be useless to repeat the divergi ng opinions of
the Conmittee and the Maltese Government concerning the anti-discrimnation

| egi sl ation al ready described. In his view, however, there was no reason not
to continue the discussion! Paragraph 6 was al so sonmewhat anbi guous, stating
that, although Maltese citizens were traditionally known for their acceptance
of different cultures and ideol ogies, that did not autonmatically mean that all
Mal t ese were persons “who could not be prejudiced”.

51. Wth regard to paragraph 10, he found a contradiction between the fact
that racial discrimnation was unaccepted in Maltese society and the fact that
the Governnent had deened it necessary to undertake canpaigns to nobilize
publ i c opinion about the negative effect of racial discrimnation. He was
convi nced that canpai gns were organi zed only when probl enms exi st ed.

52. The establishment of an Onbudsnan’s of fice was an excellent initiative
and he wel coned the fact that the work being done by the Orbudsman was
provi ded for by |aw

53. The sane paragraph nade it clear that Malta continued to believe that
the nmeasures provided for in article 4 of the Conventi on were not bindi ng,
despite the fact that the Conmittee had already clearly stated that they were
In that connection, he asked about the status of the Convention in donestic

| aw and whether it could be invoked before the Maltese courts.

54. He had been very inpressed by the informati on provided on the

i mpl ementation of article 7. He wondered whether, in addition to the

canpai gns nentioned in article 10, human rights, in particular the provisions
of the Convention, were taught in the school s.

55. M. de GOUTTES expressed appreciation for the information provided on
t he denographic and linguistic features of Malta. Another piece of

i nformation given, however, appeared to be sonewhat questionable; |ike

M. Val encia Rodriguez, he found it difficult to believe that there was no
known racial discrimnation on the island.

56. Malta had nade an interpretative declaration on article 4 of the
Convention, which the Cormittee had refuted as far back as March 1991, when it
had considered Malta’'s el eventh periodic report. The twelfth periodic report
stated that there were plans “in the near future” to enact specific

| egi slation. That was good news, but he would like to know whether it would



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1161
page 11

cone to fruition and, if so, whether the State party’'s reservation would then
be wi t hdrawn.

57. Paragraph 9 al so stated that the Governnent was considering naking the
requi red declaration under article 14 of the Convention. Wuld that step be
taken soon? Malta had already accepted the declaration laid down in

article 25 of the European Convention on Hunman Rights and, if it were to make
the declaration under article 14 of the Convention on the Elimnation of A
Forms of Racial Discrimnation, it would be joining the ranks of the countries
that had chosen to make both declarations. The step would not be negligible,
for the two Conventions were conplenentary. Malta had al so accepted the
principle of individual renedies being filed with the Hunman Rights Conmittee,
provided that such remedi es had not been subnmitted to the European Court of
Human Rights. He wondered whether that restriction would also apply to
remedies filed with the Conmittee on the Elimination of Racial Discrimnation

58. M. WO FRUM said that he strongly opposed the statenment in paragraph 5
that it was not necessary to enact |egislation to conbat racial discrimnation
since there was no racial discrimnation in Malta. He endorsed M. Garvalov’'s
coments that it was inaccurate to state that the Maltese popul ati on was
honbgeneous, since the presence of refugees in Malta, as nentioned in
paragraph 19, refuted that statenent.

59. The m sunder st andi ng between Malta and the Committee with regard to
article 4 of the Convention continued. Mlta s interpretation that there was
no point in enacting specific legislation, since there were no concerted
attenpts to pronote racial hatred or divisions in the country, was far too
restrictive.

60. Wth regard to the inplenentation of article 2, the discussion in
paragraph 7 of the report was not sufficiently explicit. The status of the
Convention in Maltese donmestic legislation was not clearly defined; it was not
i ndi cated whet her the Convention could be directly invoked before the Maltese
courts and, if so, in which cases: disputes with the Governnent only or

di sputes between individuals. It also did not indicate whether the text of
the Convention had been published, either in English or in Maltese. He
expected replies to those questions, if not at the current session, at |east
in the follow ng report, which he hoped would be subnmitted on tine.

61. M. SHERIFIS, noting that Malta and the Committee held firmy to their
respective positions on the interpretation of articles 4 and 6, said that the
Conmmittee would surely not change its opinion, but it was prepared to help the
State party nodify its point of view

62. The nmenbers of the Cormittee, as a whole and individually, were also
convi nced of the need for making the declaration provided for in article 14 of

the Convention. At a tinme when Malta was preparing for negotiations to enter
t he European Union, it should join the many ot her European countries that had
nmade t hat decl arati on.

63. He woul d also like to know whether Malta had deci ded to adopt the
amendnent to the Convention concerning the financing of the Committee.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1161
page 12

64. M. YUTZIS said that the diverging opinions of Malta and the Conmittee,
whi ch persisted despite the fact that the dial ogue was novi ng ahead in other
areas, night be due to the island’ s colonial history, which caused it to view
raci al discrinmnation froma specific viewoint. Like M. de Gouttes, he
stressed the preventive and educational nature of the |aw, whose purpose was
not only repressive. For that reason, he could not accept the argunment put
forward by Malta in paragraph 5 of the report that there was no need to enact
specific legislation unless there was significant ethnic diversity within a
soci ety.

65. Consi dering that a nunmber of people had sought refuge in Malta, it would
be quite surprising for the Maltese not to feel threatened. They woul d
certainly be an exceptional case if they did not. The statenent that “After
all, everyone is entitled to his opinions” in paragraph 6 of the report called
for comment: the right of every citizen to an opinion should certainly be
respected, but there were opinions and opi nions; someone who publicly stated
that “Jews belong to an inferior race” was comitting a crine and it was not
certain that the provisions on seditious propaganda were applicable to such a
case. Article 4 of the Convention required nuch nore explicit neasures. The
nearly unani nous interpretation of articles 4 and 2 of the Convention by the
Conmittee should encourage Malta to put an end to the controversy and duly
apply those articles.

66. M. QU NTANO (Malta) said that, for lack of time, he would reply to the
guestions at the followi ng neeting, but would like to bring the question of

t he di verging opinions of the Conmittee and Malta into perspective.
Regrettably, the nmenbers of the Conmittee had probably not seen article 45 of
the Constitution in its entirety or been infornmed of how vigorously the courts
interpreted it. That article protected nost of the rights listed in article 5
of the Convention and could easily be referred to in the Constitutional Court
by anyone who felt that his or her rights had been viol at ed.

67. Mal t ese | egal experts were at work on bringing Maltese legislation into
conformity with European instrunents.

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




